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+ The "Jim" Brown House is a large two-story, wood frame house in the
- Greek Revival style, The L-shaped house features a five-bay facade

with a central entrance. The two-story ell, which appears original,
projects from the rear of the house on the southeast side, The house
i®s of braced frame construction and rests on an ashlar stone foundation.
There is a basement, The house features clapboard siding with corner-
boards and a plain, continuous frieze. The gable roof is covered
with asphalt shingles, The gable ends are treated as pediments and
feature a molded raking cornice, flush siding, and Gothic-arch louvered
ventilators, There are three inside end chimneys with corbeled caps,

The central entrance features a three-part entablature and pilasters,
The doorway is recessed and is flanked by narrow sidelights divided

by four mullions. There is a rectangular six-panel door covered by

a modern storm door. The double-hung windows in the main block have
the original 12/12 lights in the second story; the windows have been
altered to 2/2 lights on the ground floor. Windows in the ell are
smaller and are double-hung with 6/6 lights, All of the windows have
plain trim. Those in the front and west elevations of the main block::
have decorative wood shutters painted green. The house is painted
white.

Two one-story rooms with screened porches have been added at the rear
of the house, Otherwise it is little changed. 01ld photographs in
the Peninsula (Ohio) Public Library show that the house at one time
had a shed-roofed porch with a spindle rail and frieze, probably
added c, 1880s, but this has since been removed. The original thirteen-
room house was converted to double occupancy in 1950, and there are
separate apartments on the top and ground floors. A second stairway
was added at the rear of the ell, The fireplace in the first-floor
room in the ell (now used as a living room, but probably once the
kitchen) has been altered, The room in the southwest corner of the
main block has been remodeled to serve as the kitchen, Except for
these changes, the original woodwork and fireplace mantels are intact,
on the ground floor at least; no inspection was made of the second-
story apartment, '

The Jim Brown Barn, constructed ¢, 1886, is situated about five hundred
feet southeast of the house, It is a large, three-story bank barn with
vertical siding., The gable roof is of slate. There are two cupola
ventilators with pyramidal roofs, and there are stylized Palladian
vents in the gables., The barn is painted red with white trim.

Also on the Brown property, between the house and the road, is a family
grave marker, It is a stone obelisk about seven feet tall, It once
marked the graves of "N, C. Brown," who died October 4, 1844, at the
age of nine; and "D, M, Brown," who died January 21, 1851 at the age
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

"Northern Ohio was 'flooded' with counterfeit money," William T.
Coggeshall writes in the preface to his tale about the operations of
a counterfeit ring in "Cuyahoga village," an_ unspecified town on the
Ohio Canal somewhere in the Cuyahoga Valley.l The story obviously
takes its inspiration from the legendary exploits of the infamous
"Jim" Brown, who, aided by his brother Dan and a host of others,
directed a "Banking Institution” that left an enduring imprint on the
folklore of the Cuyahoga Valley.

The Jim Brown House is significant for its association with this
interesting chapter in the nineteenth-century history of the Cuyahoga
River Valley, Built about 1845, it is a large two-story house in the |
Greek Revival style. Both the house, with its commanding view of 7
the valley, and the Victorian-period bank barn nearby have a high
degree of historical and architectural integrity.

History

Daniel M. (1788-1832) and James R. Brown (1800-1865) were natives of
New York State, While still children, their family emigrated to Ohio,
moving first to a farm near Youngstown, and finally settling on "640
acres of wild land" on the west side of the Cuyahoga River, just below
the village of Boston, Upon his marriage to Laura Wood, of Hudson,
"Dan" Brown moved to Lawrenceburg, Indiana, although he continued to
make frequent visits to his old home in Boston, "Jim" Brown married
Lucy Mather in 1819, and built a house on a portion of his father's
farm, He embarked in trade with William G. Tayler of Cleveland,
keeping a store and tavern in a two-story frame building he erected at
Boston about 1825-26, Some years later the store was moved to the
iasglsigezof the river and refitted as a hotel; Jim Brown presided as
andlord, e :

, 1"The_Counter£eitars of the Cuyahoga--A Buckeye Rémance," in
Frontier Life and Character in the South and West (Columbus, 0.: Follett,
Foster and Company, 18305, p. 229,

2Samuel A, Lane, FPifty Years and Over of Akron and Summit County
(Akron, 0,3 Beacon Job Department, 1892), pp. 87/6-877, 1t is believed
that the two-gtory store still standing adjacent to the Ohio Canal in
Boston is that built by Jim Brown. This has not been documented,

however.
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of thirty. The bodies were removed to Akron more than seventy years
ago, according to the present owner,

The Jim Brown House and Barn are situated on a hilltop and are reached
by a steep, winding drive. They are surrounded by the ninety-four-
acre Bender farm and enjoy a panoramic view of the Cuyahoga River
Valley,

1Interview with Earva C, Bender, Northampton Township, Ohio,
10 April 1978,

Item Number 10 -- continued

distance of 120 meters; then proceed due south for a distance of

140 meterss; then proceed due west to Akron Peninsula Road; then proceed
north along the eastern edge of Akron Peninsula Road to the point of
origin,
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In his history of Summit County, Samuel A. Lane writes that, "coincident
with the opening of the Ohio canal in 1827, there was in existence

an extensive organization for the manufacture of, and dealing in,
counterfeit money along the entire length /of the canal/, with its
headquarters in the Cuyahoga Valley, with the two Browns, as its
leaders.” The other principal characters in the counterfeit ring
ineluded William G. Tayor, Jim Brown's business partner; Abraham S, .
Holmes and Col, William Ashley, of Boston; William ILatta, of Bath;
Jonathan DeCourcey and Thomas Johnson, of Nortonj; and Joshua King and
Joel Keeler, of Portage.3 The currency is said to have been manu-
factured in the deep ravines of the Cuyahoga Valley, and in isolated
barns., A wooded area near the point where Bath, Boston, and Northampton
townships meet is still known as "Money Shop," bﬁcause Jim Brown
supposedly manufactured counterfeit money there.

The Brown's most infamous scheme involved a trip to the Far East, to
"market" thelr printed money in the ports of India and China. Dan
and Jim Brown went to New Orleans in the winter of 1831-32, where
they purchased and equipped a large vessel for the expedition. Jim
Brown and William Taylor went on shore the night before departure to
"paint the town" prior to the long sea voyage. The pair spent their
money so liberally, however, that it aroused the suspicions of police,
who followed them back to their vessel and seized the contraband., Dan
Brown died in a New Orleans jail cell., Accounts of the trial of his
accomplices are sketchy, but apparently Jim Brown and Taylor were
acquitted, Taylor was never heard from again; Jim Brown returned to
Boston, where he was "heartily congratulated by his 0ld neighbors,
and a good deal lionized wherever he was known.," In 1834, he was
elected Justice of the Peace for Boston township, and is said to have
administered the office with "marked fidelity" during his three-year
term,

Numerous legends surround Jim Brown's extraordinary escapes from the
law, In one instance, Brown is said to have negotiated a forged draft
with a New England bank. Then, by riding day and night on a pre-
arranged relay of fresh horses, he is said to have returned to Ohio

31vid., p. 878.

uKarl H., Grismer, Akron and Summit County (Akron, 0.: Summit

County Historical Society, /1952/), p. 110,
5Lane, Fifty Years and Over, pp. 879-881; and Gen, L. V. Bierce,

Historical Reminiscences of Summit County (Akron, O.: T. & H., G.
anrlie s y P. N
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so quickly that, when taken to trial for the crime, the court found
that (in Lane's words), "with the fagstest mode of travel then known,
no living man could have performed the journey in the time intervening
between the perpetration of the crime there, and his thoroughly
proved presence in Ohio."™ Brown is said to have committed a similar
crime near Pittsburgh, then to have ridden in a single night to his
home in the Cuyahoga Valley; neighbors saw him chopping firewood at
his own door_in the morning, and the alibi was thus successfully
established,6

In the winter of 1837-38, Brown disposed of his hotel property at
Boston and moved his family to Akron. According to Lane, in the early
1840s they moved to a three-hundred-acre farm in Northampton township,
the title to the groperty then being in the name of Daniel M, Brown,
Jim's eldest son, According to the deeds, Daniel M. Brown acquired
208,83 acres in Lot #83 (on which the house stands) in 1845 from John
Wells, and in 1846 purchased 96 additional acres in the same lot from
the State of Connecticuf. Title to the property was transferred to
James R, Brown in 1850,

Unfortunately, the exact date that the house was built is not known,
nor is it certain whether the house was built by Jim and Dan Brown,
or whether it was on the property at the time of purchase, The tax
map of Northampton township for 1846 (the earliest map available)
shows the presence of a "Frame House" as well as a barn, so it can

be established that the house was constructed by this year at 1east.9
According to the 1850 Ohio census, Jim and Lucy Brown shared the
house with their son, James Jr., and his {amily. Jim Brown's
occupation is listed as that of "farmer,"10

Although Jim Brown was frequently arrested for his crimes, he gust as
frequently managed to escape indictment. In the summer of 1846,

6Fift Years and Over, p. 881,

"Ibid., p. 882,

8Summit County, Ohio, Deeds, Vol. 1k, p. 485; Vol. 10, p. 287;
and Vol, 18, p. 315,

9Northampton Township Tax Map (1846), located in the Summit County
Building Annex, 72 S, High Street, Akron, Ohio.

63§Federal Population Census of Ohio, 1850, Summit County, Northampton,
P. .
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however, Brown was arrested for counterfeiting, tried and found guilty.
He was sentenced to ten years in the Ohio Penitentiary, While there,
Brown was a model prisoner and was given special charge of the prison
hospital, His devotion and heroism during an outbreak of cholera,

and the intercession of his daughter, Laura, won him a pardon from
President Zachary Taylor. Brown was set free in July 1849, having
gserved less than three years of his term,

According to Lane, "The free pardon from President Taylor, and the
restoration of Brown to liberty and citizenship, was not followed by
that reform of his associations and habits that his family and friends
had anticipated." _Lucy Mather Brown filed for a decree of divorce,
which was granted in December 1851, Thereafter, Brown had no contact
with his family for the rest of his life., In 1860, Brown was convicted
for passing a counterfeit bill in Michlgan, and he served a three-

year sentence there, On December 9, 1865, Brown was returning from
Cleveland to his boarding house near Yellow Creek(Botzum), when he 11
fell in a canal boat and fractured his skull, He died the next day.

Brown's eldest son, Daniel M., died in Northampton on January 21, 1851,
Lucy Mather Brown died at Akron, August 21, 1884, The Browns'
daughter, Laura, married twice, eventually moving to New York. Their
younger son, James R, Brown, {g., continued to live on the Northampton
farm until his death in 1889, The Brown farm passed to Miner H.
Howe, then to Hattie and Fred Ozier, Andrew J, Bender purchased the
property in 1907, 13 and it has been in the Bender family ever since,
Earva C, Bender, Andrew's son, farms the land today.

11Lane, Fifty Years and Over, pp. 888-889, 890.

121p14., pp. 890-891,

3Northamp’ton Township Tax Map (1900); and Summit County, Ohio,
Deeds, Vol. 350, p. 66.



